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Sara Lee
Chief Financial Officer

December 4, 2014

Board of Port Commissioners of the City of Oakland
Oakland, California

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Port of Oakland
(Port), a component unit of the City of Oakland (City), as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013. This report is comprised of three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The
Introductory Section includes this letter of transmittal, organizational chart, and list of appointed officials,
executive and contributing staff. The Financial Section begins with the independent auditors’ report,
contains management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), the Port's financial statements and
accompanying notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. The Statistical
Section includes selected financial, economic, and demographic data. All amounts are rounded to the
nearest million dollars in the MD&A and thousand dollars in the financial statements and accompanying
notes to the financial statements for presentation purposes.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in the report rests with management of the Port. The framework of internal controls provides
reasonable, rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements. The data as presented is believed to be accurate in all material aspects and presented in
a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and changes in financial position of the Port.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A, which provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to the financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the MD&A.

Certain statements in this Letter of Transmittal reflect not historical facts but forecasts, projections,
estimates and other “forward-looking statements.” The achievement of results, or other expectations,
involves known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results to be
materially different than forecasted results. The Port is not obligated to issue updates or revisions to this
discussion if and when the expectations, events, conditions or circumstances on which these statements
are based, occur or fail to occur, as the case may be.

Profile of the Port of Oakland

The Port is an independent department of the City. The City has operated a public harbor to serve
waterborne commerce since its incorporation in 1852. The City has operated an airport since 1927.
Exclusive control and management of the Port area, which includes the harbor, airport, and other
commercial real estate was delegated to a seven-member Board of Port Commissioners (Board) in 1927
by an amendment to the City Charter.

The Board has exclusive control of all of the Port's facilities and property, real and personal, all income
and revenues of the Port, and proceeds of all bond sales initiated by it for harbor, airport, and other
commercial real estate improvements, or for any other purpose. The Board has the power under the
Charter to fix, alter, change or modify the rates, tolls, fees, rentals and other charges for the use of the
Port's facilities and any services provided in connection with the Port's facilities. A substantial portion of



the Port's revenues are governed by lease, use, license and other agreements with the tenants and
customers of the Port’s three business lines: Aviation, Maritime and Commercial Real Estate. The Port is
required by the City Charter to deposit its revenues in the City Treasury.

The Oakland International Airport (Airport) is a passenger, cargo and general aviation airport located on
approximately 2,600 acres of land. The Airport is one of three major commercial airports serving the San
Francisco Bay Area and the largest cargo hub in Northern California. In 2013 the Airport ranked 36" in
the United States in terms of total passengers and 13" in terms of air cargo tonnage. In fiscal year 2014,
the Airport served approximately 9.89 million passengers and 1.15 billion pounds of air cargo. As of June
2014, the Airport offered approximately 140 daily nonstop commercial departures to 398 domestic and
international destinations, as well as over 30 daily all-cargo flight departures to destinations around the
globe.

The Oakland seaport (Seaport) serves as the principal ocean gateway for international containerized
cargo shipments in Northern California and is one of five major gateways for such shipments on the West
Coast of North America. The Seaport is the 5™ busiest cargo container port in the United States and 3"
busiest on the United States West Coast, based on the number of twenty-foot equivalent units (TEUs)
handled annually. In fiscal year 2014, approximately 2.37 million full and empty TEUs moved through the
Seaport. The Seaport comprises approximately 1,300 acres, including marine container terminals;
intermodal rail facilities; areas for truck staging and other support services; and a portion of the former
Oakland Army Base, which the Port is developing into a trade and logistics center. These facilities are
backed by a network of roads and a deep water navigation channel. All major ocean carriers serve the
Seaport, which connect the Bay Area with the major trading centers of global commerce around the
world.

In addition, the Port oversees approximately 837 acres of land along the Oakland Estuary that is not used
for maritime or aviation purposes. The commercial real estate properties on this land serve a number of
uses including warehouses, parking lots, hotels, offices, shops, restaurants, public parks and open space.

Most of the Airport, Seaport, and commercial real estate properties are located on land that is owned by
the City and, under the City Charter, controlled and managed by the Port subject to a trust imposed
pursuant to numerous tideland grants from the State of California dating back as far as 1852. Certain
requirements and restrictions are imposed by the tideland grants. Generally, the use of lands subject to
the trust is limited to statewide public purposes, including commerce, navigation, fisheries, and other
recognized uses. The trust also places certain limitations on the use of funds generated from trust lands
and other assets.

Operating and Capital Budgets

The Port’'s operating budget is an essential component of the Port’s financial and operational planning
and management. The operating budget is a plan for each Port division’s operating revenue and
expenses and for Port-wide non-operating income and expenses. Operating budgets are prepared and
presented annually to the Board. For fiscal year 2015 Port staff prepared a five-year operating forecast.
The first year of the operating forecast was presented to the Board for adoption as the Port's operating
budget, while the additional four years are presented in concept only.

In addition to preparing the operating budget, Port staff annually prepare a five-year capital needs
assessment (CNA) and a one-year capital budget. The one-year capital budget is presented to the Board
for adoption, while the CNA is presented in concept only. Since 2009, the Port’s capital program has
been reduced to accommodate budgetary and staffing constraints, as well as reduced activity levels in
the Port’s business lines. Capital improvements included in the Port's current CNA have been limited to
the highest priority items, and are primarily focused on regulatory compliance, life safety-related
improvements, and revenue maintenance.
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The approved fiscal year 2014-15 operating and capital budgets, and five-year operating forecast and
CNA, are available on the Port's website at, www.portofoakland.com/about/investors.aspx and discussed
at a high level in this transmittal letter.

Economic Outlook

The Port is located in the San Francisco Bay Area, a sizeable and generally affluent metropolitan area
whose economy is intricately linked with global trade. Home to the world’s technology leaders and a hub
for higher education, the San Francisco Bay Area both shapes and is shaped by the global economy.
Rapid growth of technology-based businesses and continued foreign investment strengthens the
importance of trade between the San Francisco Bay Area and Asia. Agricultural trade is also a significant
factor in the San Francisco Bay Area economy with the Port serving as the primary gateway for
California’s premium agricuitural goods.

The global financial crisis that began in 2007 significant impacted the San Francisco Bay Area economy,
including the Port’s tenants, customers and its three business lines. While the global economy continues
a slow and tempered recovery, the San Francisco Bay Area economy continues to excel, reporting
unemployment rates and real estate appreciation greater than the national average. However, continued
and sustained growth will be dependent on the U.S. economy’s strength and continued economic growth
among Asian countries.

The Port continues to be focused on strengthening its core businesses, enhancing its revenues and
improving its operational effectiveness while maintaining strong relationships with key stakeholders. The
redevelopment of the former Oakland Army Base promises to enhance the Seaport's competitiveness,
while improvements to Terminal 1, the runway safety area and the anticipated opening of the BART-
Oakland Airport Connector in late 2014 will improve the competitive position of the Airport. The coming
years will continue to introduce opportunities as well as challenges. Lease renewals, a competitive
landscape, aging infrastructure and rising pension, medical, security and regulatory costs, must be
addressed proactively and prudently.

Financial Planning

Fiscal year 2014 marked modest to flat growth in business activity at the Port. Passenger traffic at the
Airport decreased 0.6%, air cargo activity increased 5.5%, and the number of loaded TEUs handled at the
Seaport increased 2.2%. Despite the overall modest growth in business activity, the Port experienced a
mixed year of financial performance. In fiscal year 2014, the Port reported increased operating revenues
of 2.4%, but operating revenues were outpaced by an increase in operating expenses, before
depreciation of 11.2%, resulting in decreased operating income of 15.9%.

In fiscal year 2015, the Port has budgeted total operating revenues of approximately $314.8 million, a
2.6% decrease from fiscal year 2014 results. The decrease in revenue reflects modest increases in
business activity that is offset by the effects of projected shifts in cargo activity among Maritime terminal
operators and a one-time lease termination payment received in fiscal year 2014. Operating expenses
before depreciation are budgeted at approximately $186.3 million in fiscal year 2015, an approximate
10.5% increase over fiscal year 2014 results. Rising personnel costs, which represent 53.7% of the
operating expense budget, drive the majority of this increase.

The Port remains cautious about the future and projects flat to modest growth in operating revenue. The
Port projects operating revenues to increase to $339.2 million by the end of fiscal year 2019 for a five
year increase of 5.0%. During this period of modest revenue growth, the Port will continue to be
challenged by rising operating costs, primarily in the areas of security, regulatory compliance,
maintenance, pension, and health care costs. The Port is focused on controlling operating expenses
while addressing core operational needs, which include adequate funding for key activities necessary to
the maintenance and enhancement of the Port's competitiveness. Balancing these needs with costs the
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Port has limited control over, such as pension and health care costs, the Port projects operating
expenses before depreciation to increase significantly to approximately $206.0 million by the end of fiscal
year 2019 for a five year increase of 22.2% compared to fiscal year 2014 results.

The Port's senior management and staff will continue to assess financial and operational measures in the
context of projected business activity levels, and will continue to pursue additional revenue enhancement
and cost-savings initiatives that may be available going forward. These areas of focus were central to the
development of the Port's fiscal year 2015 operating and capital budgets, as well as the 5-year operating
forecast and CNA.

Major Initiatives

In 2010, the Board approved the Port of Oakland Strategic Plan Fiscal Years 2011-2015. The Strategic
Plan serves as a general statement of the Port’s vision, mission, goals, objectives, and guiding principles
to shape organizational performance and decision-making through fiscal year 2015. Consistent with the
Strategic Plan, each year, staff and the Board identify major initiatives to maintain and enhance Port
operations. These initiatives are focused on upgrading and expanding the Port’s facilities to sustain and
accommodate future growth, improve its overall competitiveness, maintain safety, and enhance security.
Many of these initiatives span multiple years due to the significance and complexity of these initiatives.

Following are the most significant projects underway for each of the Port’s business lines:

Aviation

Terminal 1 Retrofit and Renovation Program. Planned improvements at Terminal 1 are focused on
replacing inefficient and outdated infrastructure, bringing building systems up to code, improving
passenger service, prolonging service life and improving life cycle costs. The program has been
underway since 2008 and is being implemented in a phased manner to prioritize life safety and other
code requirements while considering funding availability. The Airport has completed construction of a new
central utility plant mechanical building and renovations of the old mechanical buildings. The renovation
and seismic retrofit of Building M102, which began in March 2014, will continue for approximately three
years. The retrofit and building systems upgrades and replacement will be accomplished while
maintaining operations in the building, which includes the passenger security checkpoint, concessions,
Port administrative offices, and other passenger facilities. Continuing in a phased approach, upgrades to
the remaining buildings and infrastructure of Terminal 1 will be assessed and prioritized, and the next
round of construction is anticipated to begin in 2016. The entire Terminal 1 Retrofit and Renovation
Program includes green building principles and the design and construction of airport administrative
offices will seek Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Certification.

Runway Safety Area Improvements. The FAA requires that commercial airports regulated under Part 139
have standard Runway Safety Areas (RSAs) where practicable. RSAs enhance the safety of airplanes in
the event that the aircraft undershoots, overruns, or veers off the runway. Beginning in 2005, the Airport
developed a design to bring the runway into compliance. Construction of the South Field improvements
began at the end of fiscal year 2013 and were substantially completed in November 2014. North Field
construction will begin in late 2014 and be completed prior to the Congressionally mandated deadline of
December 31, 2015.

BART - Oakland Airport Connector. In fiscal year 2011, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District (BART) broke ground on the Oakland Airport Connector project, which will improve access
between the Airport and the regional rail transit system using an automated people mover. The project is
being implemented by BART under a Design, Build, Operate and Maintain contract. The Port has
entered into an agreement with BART for a maximum Port contribution to the project of $45.4 million. In
fiscal year 2012, the Port began funding its contribution to the project from passenger facility charges.
BART conducted system testing during 2014 and commenced service to the public in late November
2014.
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Perimeter Dike. The perimeter dike separates the South Field airfield from San Francisco Bay waters and
in need of flood hazard and seismic improvements. The Port is working with the Federal Emergency
Management Agency to undertake the necessary improvements to the perimeter dike
so that restrictions on future Airport development is minimized. Design and environmental review are
underway and completion is expected in the summer of 2015. Construction of the initial phase of dike
improvements is scheduled for completion in 2016.

Maritime

Oakland Logistics Center (formerly Oakland Army Base Redevelopment). The Oakland Army Base
(OAB) is a former military supply depot built during World War II, closed in 1993, and transferred to the
City and Port between 2003 and 2006. A Master Plan for the overall development of the Port and City
owned property was completed in 2012. The Port plans to develop its 241 acres of property into a
logistics center comprising an intermodal rail terminal, transloading, and warehousing facilities. The
redevelopment will facilitate the efficient movement of cargo in and out of the Port’s marine terminals,
improve intermodal service, and position the Port to secure additional maritime and maritime-related
business. In 2014 construction continued on a new 50,000-ft rail yard for staging railcars, including
earthwork, utility relocations, drainage and grading, and track installation. The improvements will provide
additional railcar storage capacity for current and future customers at the Oakland Logistics Center,
particularly transload, bulk businesses. The first phase of construction is scheduled to be completed in
2015. Additional development will be based on market demand. In anticipation of this work, the Port
continues to prepare the property through activities such as environmental remediation, grading,
preliminary engineering and design, and limited infrastructure improvements.

Maritime Security Projects. Since 2001, the Port, state and Federal government have focused on
Seaport security as a critical link in national defense. Leveraging federal security grant programs, the
Port continues to implement security and emergency communication enhancements at the Seaport.
Ongoing security projects that are expected to be completed in fiscal year 2015 include expansion of a
fiber optic network to better interface the surveillance and monitoring systems; the integration of
additional high definition closed circuit television cameras into the common surveillance platform; and
expansion of the Geospatial Information System to improve Port resiliency and allow better information
sharing among agencies during emergencies.

Shore Power Infrastructure. California law requires major reductions in air pollutant emissions associated
with the auxiliary engines that power vessels when they are at dock. In coordination with its tenants and
customers, the Port determined that the most effective compliance option was for vessels to receive
electric power supply from the shore. The Port's Shore Power Program involved the construction of
electrical land-side connections that enable ships to plug into the electric grid while docked. The Seaport
completed construction of this infrastructure in 2013.

Commercial Real Estate

The Port welcomed new tenants, including restaurants, a workout facility, and office space, at the Jack
London Square area through the partnership between the Port and its developer partner, Jack London
Square Ventures LLC. The Port will continue to work with developers and its tenants to maintain and
maximize its commercial real estate with a focus on the Airport Business Park and Jack London Square.



Awards

The Port received the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for the Port's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A certificate is valid for a period of one year only. The Port will be submitting the current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements

We would like to express our appreciation to the Financial Services Division for their professionalism,
dedication, and efficiency in the preparation of this report. We also extend our appreciation to the other
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Sacramento

Independent Auditors’ Report
Walnut Creek

L i LA/Century City
Board of Port Commissioners of the City of Oakland,

Oakland, California Newport Beach
Report on the Financial Statements il Risge
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port of Oakland (Port), a component unit of the Seattle

City of Oakland, California as of and for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Port as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

www.mgocpa.com 1



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress — other postemployment benefits identified in the
accompanying table of contents be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Port’s financial statements. The introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The introductory and statistical
sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 3, 2014,
on our consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
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Oakland, California
December 4, 2014



Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to provide information concerning
known facts and conditions affecting the Port of Oakland’s (Port) operations. The following discussion
and analysis of the financial performance and activities of the Port provides an introduction and
understanding of the financial statements of the Port for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
with comparative information for June 30, 2012. This MD&A has been prepared by management and
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the accompanying notes, which follow
this section.

Financial Statement Overview

The Port’s financial report includes the MD&A, financial statements, notes to the financial statements,
and required supplementary information. The financial statements include the Statements of Net Position;
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and Statements of Cash Flows. In
addition, the report includes a statistical section, which presents various financial and operating data.

The Port prepares the financial statements on the accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Revenues are recognized when earned, not when received, and expenses are
recognized when incurred, not when paid. Capital assets are capitalized and, with the exception of land,
air rights and noise easements, depreciated over their useful lives.

Summary of Net Position

The Statements of Net Position present the financial position of the Port at the end of the fiscal year. The
statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
of the Port. Net Position, the difference between assets, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and
liabilities, are an indicator of the current fiscal health of the Port and can provide an indication of
improvement of its financial position over time. A summarized comparison of the Port’s assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and net position as of June 30 follows (in millions):

% %
2014 Change 2013 Change 2012

Current and other assets $ 380.1 12.2% $ 338.8 -3.0% $ 349.2
Capital assets, net 2,196.8 -0.1% 2,199.1 0.6% 2,185.7
Total assets 2,576.9 1.5% 2,537.9 0.1% 2,534.9
Deferred outflow of resources 13.4 -7.6% 14.5 3.6% 14.0
Debt outstanding 1,258.3 -3.7% 1,306.5 -5.0% 1,375.6
Other liabilities 221.8 2.0% 217.5 -5.8% 231.0
Total liabilities 1,480.1 -2.9% 1,524.0 -5.1% 1,606.6
Net investment in capital
assets 987.0 4.4% 945.0 7.1% 882.4
Restricted for construction 10.1 -28.9% 14.2 -31.1% 20.6
Unrestricted 113.1 63.4% 69.2 76.1% 39.3
Total net position $1,110.2 8.0% $ 1,028.4 9.1% $ 942.3



Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Summary of Net Position (continued)

Total net position at June 30, 2014, increased approximately $81.8 million or 8.0% from $1,028.4 million
on June 30, 2013 to $1,110.2 million on June 30, 2014. Net investment in capital assets, net of related
debt, increased $42.0 million due to a decrease in outstanding debt of $48.2 million offset by a decrease
in the book value of capital assets of approximately $2.3 million and an increase in accounts payable on
construction contracts of $4.9 million. Restricted for construction decreased $4.1 million due to
continued spending of passenger facility charges (PFC) proceeds on construction projects. Unrestricted
net position increased approximately $43.9 million due to an increase in the Port’s unrestricted cash
balance of $23.1 million, an increase in accounts receivable of $10.6 million primarily due to federal
grants, an increase in other assets of $5.4 million for tenant performance deposits and a decrease in
unearned revenue of $4.9 million.

Total net position at June 30, 2013, increased approximately $86.1 million or 9.1% from $942.3 million
on June 30, 2012 to $1,028.4 million on June 30, 2013. Net investment in capital assets, net of related
debt, increased by approximately $62.6 million due to decrease in outstanding debt of $69 million and an
increase in capital assets, net of depreciation of $13 million, offset by an increase in accounts payables on
construction contracts of $4 million and decreases in bond reserves of $12.5 million and noise abatement
reserves of $2.4 million. Restricted for construction decreased $6.4 million due to an increase in
spending of PFC proceeds on construction projects. Unrestricted net position increased approximately
$29.9 million primarily as a result of an increase in other receivables of $17 million and a decrease in
unearned revenue and environmental and other liabilities of $14 million. The increase in other
receivables was primarily due to a $13.5 million promissory note from the combined sale and lease of the
Oak-to-Ninth property. The decrease in environmental and other liabilities was primarily due to the
completion and progress on environmental projects.

Deferred outflows of resources is the amount of the unamortized deferred loss on refunding that was
formerly included in the long term debt total. This change was made because of the adoption of GASB
65 as discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements that classifies certain transactions in a new category
called deferred outflows of resources.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reflect how the Port’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year compared to the prior year. These changes are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. A summary of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as of June 30

follows (in millions):

Operating revenues
Passenger facility charge revenue
Customer facility charge revenue
Interest income
Other income

Total revenues

Operating expenses before depreciation
Depreciation
Interest expense
Other expense
Total expenses

Change in net assets before capital
contributions
Capital contributions -
Grants from government agencies
Increase in net position
Net position, beginning of the year
Net position, end of the year

Twelve Months Ended

% %

2014 Change 2013 Change 2012
$ 3230 2.4% $ 3155 3.1% $ 306.1
19.7 -1.0% 19.9 0.5% 19.8
5.6 3.7% 5.4 3.8% 5.2
1.4 27.3% 1.1 -35.3% 1.7

- -100.0% 19.1 100.0% -
349.7 -3.1% 361.0 8.5% 332.8
168.5 11.1% 151.6 0.5% 150.8
99.2 1.0% 98.2 0.2% 98.0
54.0 -9.4% 59.6 -10.8% 66.8
6.5 91.2% 3.4 -17.1% 4.1
328.2 4.9% 312.8 -2.2% 319.7
21.5 -55.4% 48.2 267.9% 13.1
60.3 59.1% 37.9 63.4% 23.2
81.8 -5.0% 86.1 137.2% 36.3
1,028.4 9.1% 942.3 4.0% 906.0
$ 1,110.2 8.0% $ 1,028.4 9.1% $ 9423



Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating Revenues by Division

A condensed summary of operating revenues as of June 30 follows (in millions):

Division 2014 2013 2012
Aviation $ 1572 $ 1509 $ 140.3
Maritime 152.7 151.9 153.0
Commercial Real Estate 13.1 12.7 12.8
Total $ 3230 $ 3155 $ 306.1

Operating Revenues

Commercial Real
Estate
| FY2013
Aviation 0 Fr2012

0.0 20.0 40.0 60.0 80.0 100.0 120.0 140.0 160.0
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2014

The Port’s operating revenues increased approximately $7.5 million or 2.4% from $315.5 million in fiscal
year 2013 to $323.0 million in fiscal year 2014.

The Aviation Division generated $157.2 million or 48.7% of the Port’s total operating revenues in fiscal
year 2014. Aviation’s operating revenues increased approximately $6.3 million or 4.2% from $150.9
million in fiscal year 2013 to $157.2 million in fiscal year 2014. The increase in Aviation operating
revenue was due to increases in: terminal rental revenue of $3.7 million; parking revenue of $1.3 million;
concession revenue of $0.7 million, and landing fees of $0.5 million. The primary reasons for these
increases were an increase in the terminal rental rate from $179.44 per square foot to $205.68 per square
foot and an increase in demand for parking at the Airport. In fiscal year 2014 enplanements remained
relatively flat, with a small decrease from 9,950,856 in fiscal year 2013 to 9,890,271 in fiscal year 2014.



Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating Revenues by Division (continued)

The Maritime Division generated $152.7 million or 47.3% of the Port’s total operating revenues in fiscal
year 2014. Maritime’s operating revenues increased approximately $0.8 million or 0.5% from $151.9
million in fiscal year 2013 to $152.7 million in fiscal year 2014. The increase in Maritime operating
revenue was primarly due to increased short-term rentals. Loaded Twenty Equivalent Units (TEUS)
increased 2.2% from 1,793,749 in fiscal year 2013 to 1,832,559 in fiscal year 2014.

The Commercial Real Estate Division generated $13.1 million or 4.1% of the Port’s total operating
revenues in fiscal year 2014. Commercial Real Estate’s operating revenues in fiscal year 2014 were
essentially unchanged from fiscal year 2013.

2013

The Port’s operating revenues increased approximately $9.4 million or 3.1% from $306.1 million in fiscal
year 2012 to $315.5 million in fiscal year 2013.

The Aviation Division generated $150.9 million or 47.8% of the Port’s total operating revenues in fiscal
year 2013. Auviation’s operating revenues increased approximately $10.6 million or 7.6% from $140.3
million in fiscal year 2012 to $150.9 million in fiscal year 2013. The increase in Aviation revenue was
due to increases in: terminal rental revenue of $4.0 million; cargo building rental revenue of $2.3 million;
parking revenue of $1.2 million; utility revenue of $1.5 million; and concession revenue of $0.7 million.
The primary reasons for these increases were an increase in the terminal rental rate from $145.88 per
square foot to $179.44 per square foot and an overall increase in demand at the airport. Passenger traffic
increased 3.2% in fiscal year 2013, from 9,643,555 in fiscal year 2012 to 9,950,856 in fiscal year 2013.

The Maritime Division generated $151.9 million or 48.1% of the Port’s total operating revenues in fiscal
year 2013. Maritime’s operating revenues decreased approximately $1.1 million or 0.7% from $153
million in fiscal year 2012 to $151.9 million in fiscal year 2013. The decrease in Maritime revenue is
primarily due to a shift in cargo activity among the terminals. TEUs decreased 0.1% from 1,796,671 in
fiscal year 2012 to 1,794,187 in fiscal year 2013.

The Commercial Real Estate Division generated $12.7 million or 4.0% of the Port’s total operating
revenues in fiscal year 2013. Commercial Real Estate’s operating revenues in fiscal year 2013 were
essentially unchanged from fiscal year 2012.



Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating Expenses by Division

A condensed summary of operating expenses (excluding depreciation) as of June 30 follows (in millions):

Division 2014 2013 2012
Aviation $ 1154 $ 106.0 $ 106.7
Maritime 43.2 37.1 35.7
Commercial Real Estate 9.9 8.5 8.4
Total $ 1685 $ 1516 $ 150.8

Operating Expenses
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2014

The Port’s operating expenses, excluding depreciation, increased approximately $16.9 million or 11.1%
from $151.6 million in fiscal year 2013 to $168.5 million in fiscal year 2014.

The Auviation Division represented 68.5% of the Port’s total operating expenses in fiscal year 2014.
Auviation’s operating expenses increased approximately $9.4 million or 8.9% from $106.0 million in fiscal
year 2013 to $115.4 million in fiscal year 2014. The increase is due primarily to higher personnel related
expenses for salaries, medical and retirement, security and safety expenses, utilities and maintenance.

The Maritime Division represented 25.6% of the Port’s total operating expenses in fiscal year
2014. Maritime’s operating expenses increased approximately $6.1 million or 16.4% from $37.1 million
in fiscal year 2013 to $43.2 million in fiscal year 2014. The increase is due primarily to higher personnel
related expenses for salaries, medical and retirement, property expenses for truck parking and utilities and
maintenance for the Shore Power Program.



Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Operating Expenses by Division (continued)

The Commercial Real Estate Division represented 5.9% of the Port’s total operating expenses in fiscal
year 2014. Commercial Real Estate’s operating expenses increased approximately $1.4 million or 16.5%
from $8.5 million in fiscal year 2013 to $9.9 million in fiscal year 2014. The increase is due primarily to
higher personnel related expenses for salaries, medical and retirement, pollution remediation site
monitoring costs and utilities.

2013

The Port’s operating expenses, excluding depreciation, increased approximately $0.8 million or 0.5%
from $150.8 million in fiscal year 2012 to $151.6 million in fiscal year 2013.

The Auviation Division represented 69.9% of the Port’s total operating expenses in fiscal year 2013.
Auviation’s operating expenses decreased approximately $0.7 million or 0.7% from $106.7 million in
fiscal year 2012 to $106.0 million in fiscal year 2013. The decrease was primarily due to lower Aircraft
Rescue and Fire Fighting (ARFF) expenses resulting from a fiscal year 2012 and fiscal year 2013 true-up
with the City of Oakland.

The Maritime Division represented 24.5% of the Port’s total operating expenses in fiscal year 2013.
Maritime’s operating expenses increased approximately $1.4 million or 3.9% from $35.7 million in fiscal
year 2012 to $37.1 million in fiscal year 2013. The increase was due to higher personnel related expenses,
security projects and supplies for a variety of maintenance and repair projects.

The Commercial Real Estate Division represented 5.6% of the Port’s total operating expenses in fiscal
year 2013. Commercial Real Estate’s operating expenses in fiscal year 2013 were essentially unchanged
from fiscal year 2012.

Depreciation Expense by Division

A summary of depreciation expense as of June 30 follows (in millions):

Division 2014 2013 2012
Aviation $ 427 $ 445 $ 45.4
Maritime 534 50.6 494
Commercial Real Estate 3.1 3.1 3.2
Total $ 99.2 $ 98.2 $ 98.0




Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Depreciation Expense by Division (continued)

Depreciation Expense
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2014

In fiscal year 2014, depreciation expense increased $1 million or 1.0%. Maritime depreciation increased
approximately $2.8 million due to assets placed into service near the end of fiscal year 2013 and several
additions placed in service during the first half of fiscal year 2014. The most significant Maritime assets
placed in service during fiscal year 2014 were capital assets constructed under the Port’s Shore Power
Program. Auviation depreciation expense decreased $1.8 million due to several assets that fully
depreciated during the year, as well as several assets that were retired at the beginning of fiscal year
2014.

The Port completed projects worth approximately $92.6 million during the fiscal year 2014, of which
approximately $31.0 million were for the Aviation Division and $61.6 million were for the Maritime
Division. The most significant Maritime projects completed during fiscal year 2014 were related to the
Port’s Shore Power Program, and redevelopment of the former Oakland Army Base. The most significant
Aviation projects completed during fiscal year 2014 were related to taxiway improvements and the
Terminal 1 retrofit and renovation.

2013

In fiscal year 2013, depreciation expense increased less than $0.2 million or 0.2%. Depreciation expense
on Maritime related assets increased $1.2 million due to assests placed into service near the end of fiscal
year 2012. Depreciation expense on Aviation related assets decreased $0.9 million due to several assets
that fully depreciated in fiscal year 2012 and in early 2013.

The Port completed projects worth approximately $87.9 million during fiscal year 2013, of which

approximately $61.3 million are for the Aviation Division, $26.5 million are for the Maritime Division
and $40 thousand are for the Commercial Real Estate Division.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Depreciation Expense by Division (continued)

A summary of depreciation expense for non-grant funded assets and grant funded assets for June 30 (in
millions) follows:

2014 2013 2012
Non-grant funded assets $ 727 $ 685 $ 709
Grant funded assets (including those funded by PFCs) 26.5 29.7 27.1
Total depreciation expense $ 992 $§ 982 $ 980

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $5.6 million in fiscal year 2014 from $59.6 million in fiscal year 2013 to $54.0
million in fiscal year 2014. The decrease in interest expense is the result of scheduled principal payments
as well as a decrease in fees associated with the Port’s commercial paper program.

Interest expense decreased $7.2 million in fiscal year 2013 from $66.8 million in fiscal year 2012 to $59.6
million in fiscal year 2013. The decrease in interest expense is the result of the Port refunding
outstanding debt and scheduled principal payments. For further explanation, refer to Debt Administration
section.

Other Income
In fiscal year 2013, the Port recognized approximately $19 million of other income. Other income
consisted primarily of a $13 million gain from the sale of Commercial Real Estate assets known as Oak-

to-Ninth and the effect of changes in estimate of previously expensed legal and environmental matters of
$5.8 million.

Additional information on the gain from the sale of assets can be found in Note 4 Changes in Capital
Assets in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Capital Contributions
Grants are, for the most part, restricted for the acquisition or construction of capital assets.

In fiscal year 2014, grants from government agencies increased approximately $22.4 million or 59.1%
from $37.9 million in fiscal year 2013 to $60.3 million in fiscal year 2014. The increase was due to
significant grant funding for capital projects. The most significant grant funded projects were the
redevelopment of the Former Oakland Army Base, primarily funded by a Trade Corridor Improvement
Fund grant, for which the Port recognized approximately $18.8 million in grant funding and the Runway
Safety Area project, primarily funded with Airport Improvement Program grants, for which the Port
recognized approximately $28.1 million in grant funding.

In fiscal year 2013, grants from government agencies increased approximately $14.7 million or 63.2%
from $23.2 million in fiscal year 2012 to $37.9 million in fiscal year 2013. The increase was due to
additional grant funding for capital projects in the Aviation Division, primarily funded with the Airport
Improvement Program grants for the Runway Safety Area project.

Capital Assets (net of depreciation) and Capital Needs Assessment

A summary of Capital Assets, net of depreciation and amortization as of June 30 follows (in millions):

% %
2014 Change 2013 Change 2012
Capital assets:

Land $ 523.3 00% $ 523.2 05% $ 520.8
Noise easements and air 25.9 10.2% 23.5 0.0% 235
Construction in progress 200.7 1.8% 197.1 12.6% 175.0
Buildings and improvements 328.6 -6.6% 351.9 -1.2% 379.1
Container cranes 59.5 -8.0% 64.7 -7.6% 70.0
Infrastructure 1,020.5 1.9% 1,001.9 2.0% 981.9
Software 9.3 -12.3% 10.6 12.8% 9.4
Other equipment 29.0 10.7% 26.2 0.8% 26.0

Total $_2196.8 -01% $_2199.1 06% $ _ 21857

Net capital assets decreased by approximately $2.3 million or 0.1% in fiscal year 2014, due to capital
asset additions of $105.1 million offset by retirements and abandoned construction in progress of $8.2
million and an increase in accumulated depreciation of $99.3 million. Major additions to capital assets in
fiscal year 2014 included electrical infrastructure for the Shore Power Program; BART — Oakland Airport
Connector; Airport Terminal 1 retrofit and renovation; Airport Runway Safety Area project; and
redevelopment of the former Oakland Army Base.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Capital Assets (net of depreciation) and Capital Needs Assessment (continued)

Net capital assets increased by approximately $13.3 million or 0.6% in fiscal year 2013, due to capital
asset additions of $116.6 million offset by retirements and abandoned construction in progress of $5.1
million and an increase in accumulated depreciation of $98.2 million. Major additions to capital assets in
fiscal year 2013 included electrical infrastructure for the Shore Power Program; BART — Oakland Airport
Connector; Airport Terminal 1 renovation; Airport Runway Safety Area project; and overlay of various
taxiways.

Additional information on the Port’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 Changes in Capital Assets in
the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

On June 26, 2014, a Five-Year (fiscal year 2015-2019) Capital Needs Assessment (CNA) in the amount
of $573.4 million was presented to the Board of Port Commissioners (Board) for informational purposes.
For fiscal year 2015, the Board adopted a capital budget of $175.3 million. The most significant projects
in the CNA are:

Aviation: Terminal 1 renovation and retrofit; BART — Oakland Airport Connector; perimeter dike
improvements; and the runway safety area.

Maritime: Phase 1 redevelopment of the former Oakland Army Base.
Debt Administration

The total debt of the Port decreased approximately $48.2 million or 3.7% from $1,306.5 million in fiscal
year 2013 to $1,258.3 million in fiscal year 2014. The decrease resulted from principal payments of $43
million on outstanding bonds, commercial paper, and a loan with the Department of Boating and
Waterways and a decrease to unamortized bond premium totaling $5 million.

The total debt of the Port decreased approximately $69.1 million or 5% from $1,375.6 million in fiscal
year 2012 to $1,306.5 million in fiscal year 2013. The decrease resulted from the refunding of
outstanding debt, which was financed through a combination of new refunding bonds and internally
generated funds. Specifically, the Port refunded a total of $464 million of outstanding senior lien debt
and issued $384 million in refunding bonds. In addition, the Port made principal payments of $31 million
on outstanding bonds, commercial paper, and a loan with the Department of Boating and Waterways.
These decreases were partially offset by net increase to unamortized bond premium totaling $42 million.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Debt Administration (continued)

The following table summarizes the Port’s outstanding debt as of June 30 (in millions):

2014 2013 2012
Bond Indebtedness $ 11757 $ 12227 $ 12827
DBW Loan 51 5.4 5.6
Commercial Paper 77.4 78.4 87.3
Total debt $ 12582 $ 1,306.5 $ 13756

The debt coverage ratios for the fiscal years ended June 30 were as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Senior Lien 3.33 2.49 2.33
Intermediate Lien 1.63 1.59 1.50
Aggregate 1.61 1.58 1.50

The calculation to determine Aggregate Debt Coverage Ratio includes Senior Lien Bond debt service,
California Department of Boating and Waterways Loan debt service, Intermediate Lien Bond debt
service, and Commercial Paper Note interest. In fiscal year 2014, the Aggregate Debt Coverage Ratio
also includes a $1 million principal repayment of Commercial Paper Notes. This calculation is not
defined and is not a requirement in any Indenture.

Additional information on the Port’s debt activity can be found in Note 5 Debt in the accompanying notes
to the financial statements.

Credit Ratings

The Port’s credit ratings as of June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Standard & Poor’s Rating Services (S&P) underlying rating on the Port’s Senior Lien Bonds is “A+”
and the Intermediate Lien Bonds is “A”. The Commercial Paper Notes for Series A, Series B and
Series C is “A-1+", and the Commercial Paper Notes for Series D, Series E and Series F is “A-1".
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s) underlying rating on the Port’s Senior Lien Bonds is “A2”
and the Intermediate Lien Bonds is “A3”. The Commercial Paper Notes for all series is “P1”.

Fitch Ratings (Fitch) underlying rating on the Port’s Senior Lien Bonds is “A+” and the Port’s
Intermediate Lien Bonds is “A-“. The Commercial Paper Notes for Series A, Series B, and Series C
is “F1+” and the Commercial Paper Notes for Series D, Series E, and Series F is “F1”.

The Port’s Intermediate Lien Bonds are insured by National Public Finance Guarantee Corp. whose
S&P rating is “AA-".
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (unaudited)
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the Port’s financial statements can be found on pages 23-58 of this report. These notes
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the financial statements.

Facts and Conditions Affecting the Port’s Operation

Aviation

The Airport is one of three commercial airports serving the San Francisco Bay Area; the Airport, San
Francisco International (SFO), and Norman Mineta San Jose International (SJC). The Bay Area airports,
especially the Airport and SFO, serve overlapping markets and compete for passengers who frequently
consider more than one Bay Area airport when purchasing air travel. Additionally, airlines may shift their
operations among the Bay Area airports based upon local competition and each airline's market share
goals. Air carriers also consider airport operating costs, the availability of airport facilities and, in some
cases, the location of existing alliance partner flight activity as contributing factors in their
flight schedule decision-making process. In addition to the aforementioned factors, the activity levels at
the Airport are also sensitive to general economic conditions, acts of terrorism or disease
epidemic/pandemic which could significantly impact demand for air travel. The Airport is unable to
predict how market competition or future economic conditions will affect the Airport’s operations.

Maritime

The Seaport competes for market share with respect to discretionary intermodal rail cargo with other U.S.
West Coast ports, as well as with ports in other parts of the U.S. and in Canada and Mexico. Future
developments, including but not limited to the widening of the Panama Canal, could result in greater
diversion of this type of cargo from West Coast ports to East Coast and Gulf ports. Expansion of other
ports could also cause a decrease in the Port’s market share of discretionary intermodal rail cargo. As the
Seaport continues to work towards expanding its market share of such cargo, these types of developments
may adversely affect the Seaport. However, the Seaport cannot predict the scope of potential impacts at
this time.

The Seaport’s competitive position on the West Coast and in the U.S. is also affected by the availability
and productivity of labor on the marine terminals. The bargaining agreement between the International
Longshore and Warehouse Union and the Pacific Maritime Association, expired on July 1, 2014.
Negotiations are ongoing but concerns of labor instability and work stoppages may lead to the diversion
of cargo from or between U.S. West Coast ports, including the Seaport.  Potential disruptions at the
various U.S. West Coast ports may not be equal, and therefore, could lead to an increase or a decrease of
cargo activity, as cargo is diverted either from or to the other U.S. West Coast ports. The impacts, if any,
of the on-going negotiations cannot be estimated at this time.

Historically, the Port has managed a balance of import and export trade, leading with a strong export base
of California’s premium agricultural products and other U.S. goods bound for foreign markets. The State
of California is currently experiencing one of its worst droughts on record, with significant impacts to the
State’s agricultural industry. The overall economic impact of the drought depends on a number of
complex and inter-related factors, and it is therefore difficult to quantify and predict how the drought may
impact the Port’s cargo activity or how long those impacts, if any, may last.
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Commercial Real Estate

Over the last decade, the Commercial Real Estate Division has leased most of its properties to developers
or tenants under long-term ground leases, under which the developer or tenant is responsible for the
development, subleasing, operation and maintenance of the improvements on the properties. The Port
continues to work with the developers to ensure the properties are developed and managed in ways that
are compliant with California Tidelands Trust regulations, however most of the development cost and
financial risk is held by the developers.

Contacting the Port’s Financial Management
Requests for additional information about this report, should be addressed to the Financial Services

Division, Port of Oakland, 530 Water Street, Oakland, California 94607 or visit the website at
www.portofoakland.com.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2014 2013
Assets
Current assets:
Unrestricted:
Cash equivalents $ 202,546 $ 179,440
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $1,036 in 2014 and $1,955 in 2013) 44,655 34,052
Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,961 4,098
Total unrestricted current assets 251,162 217,590
Restricted:
Cash equivalents 65,377 11,702
Investments - 57,896
Deposits in escrow 5,549 2,269
Receivables - passenger facility charges and customer facility charges 2,793 2,596
Accrued interest receivable - 25
Total restricted current assets 73,719 74,488
Total current assets 324,881 292,078
Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
Land 523,283 523,235
Noise easements and air rights 25,852 23,493
Construction in progress 200,709 197,125
Buildings and improvements 851,650 848,432
Container cranes 153,417 153,775
Infrastructure 1,730,806 1,650,965
Software 13,391 13,391
Other equipment 86,039 78,829
Total capital assets, at cost 3,585,147 3,489,245
Less accumulated depreciation (1,388,373) (1,290,160)
Capital assets, net 2,196,774 2,199,085
Other receivables 43,137 43,538
Other assets 12,047 3,148
Total non-current assets 2,251,958 2,245,771
Total assets 2,576,839 2,537,849
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Loss on refunding $ 13431 $ 14,512

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Port of Oakland

(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Statements of Net Position (continued)

June 30, 2014 and 2013

(dollar amounts in thousands)

Current liabilities:

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $

Retentions on construction contracts
Environmental and other

Accrued interest

Long-term debt, net

Liability to City of Oakland
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:

Retentions on construction contracts
Environmental and other

Long-term debt, net

Deposits

Other post employment benefits
Unearned revenue

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for construction
Unrestricted

Total net position

Net Position

2014 2013
38,245 35,660
2,591 6,085
9,714 10,832
9,416 9,732
49,919 48,464
5,153 6,044
12,220 12,491
127,258 129,308
6,395 1,705
23,320 26,170
1,208,346 1,257,997
16,486 5,546
10,414 10,453
87,860 92,763
1,352,821 1,394,634
1,480,079 1,523,942
986,959 944,974
10,072 14,178
113,160 69,267
1,110,191 1,028,419

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Operating revenues:
Aviation:

Terminal rentals and concessions
Parking fees and ground access
Lease rentals
Landing fees
Utility sales
Fueling
Other

Total aviation operating revenues

Maritime:
Marine terminal rentals
Space assignments and rentals
Utility sales
Other

Total maritime operating revenues

Commercial real estate:
Lease rentals
Parking fees
Other

Total commercial real estate operating revenues
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Aviation:

Materials, supplies, contract services and other
Security
Maintenance
Advertising and promotion
Administration
Cost of utility sales
Depreciation

Total aviation operating expenses

Maritime:
Materials, supplies, contract services and other
Maintenance
Advertising and promotion
Administration
Cost of utility sales
Depreciation

Total maritime operating expenses

2014 2013
58,790 53,234
31,848 30,548
26,635 26,779
29,351 28,762

4,212 5,324
3,914 3,918
2,470 2,306
157,220 150,871
134,845 139,415
8,665 6,518
5,834 4,015
3,313 1,921
152,657 151,869
10,021 9,396
2,171 2,133
971 1,249
13,163 12,778
323,040 315,518
60,635 56,644
14,615 13,766
22,686 21,487
3,620 3,243
11,908 9,229
2,006 1,633
42,738 44,459
158,208 150,461
14,149 13,140
12,583 10,876
1,593 1,474
11,853 9,523
3,023 2,046
53,404 50,624
96,605 87,683

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2014 2013
Operating expenses, continued
Commercial real estate:

Materials, supplies, contract services and other $ 7,170 $ 6,138

Maintenance 740 786

Advertising and promotion 170 156

Administration 1,522 1,380

Cost of utility sales 272 102

Depreciation 3,117 3,151

Total commercial real estate operating expenses 12,991 11,713

Total operating expenses 267,804 249,857

Operating income 55,236 65,661
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Interest income 1,373 1,095

Interest expense (53,977) (59,598)

Customer facility charges 5,625 5,387

Passenger facility charges 19,698 19,924

Other income (expense) (2,727) 3,668

Gain (loss) on sale (disposal) of capital assets (3,791) 12,052

Total net non-operating expenses (33,799) (17,472)
Increase in net position before capital contributions 21,437 48,189
Capital contributions -

Grants from government agencies 60,335 37,896
Increase in net position 81,772 86,085
Net position, beginning of the year 1,028,419 942,334
Net position, end of the year $ 1,110,191 $ 1,028,419

(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users $ 321,355 $ 306,209
Payments to suppliers (91,981) (79,199)
Payments to employees (83,698) (74,492)
Other operating cash receipts 7,349 2,119
Net cash provided by operating activities 153,025 154,637
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from new borrowings - 430,213
Repayments/refunding of debt (42,942) (495,317)
Payments to grant subrecipant (2,727) -
Grants from government agencies 48,685 29,849
Interest paid on debt (58,466) (65,121)
Purchase of capital assets (97,830) (110,498)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 92 4,801
Customer facility charge and passenger facility charge receipts 20,984 20,305
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (132,204) (185,768)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received on investments 1,344 1,233
Purchase of restricted investments - (20,010)
Proceeds from maturity of restricted investments 54,616 31,197
Net cash provided by investing activities 55,960 12,420
Net increase (decrease) in cash equivalents 76,781 (18,711)
Cash equivalents, beginning of year 191,142 209,853
Cash equivalents, end of year $ 267,923 $ 191,142

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income $

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Depreciation

Other

Net effects of changes in:
Accounts receivable, net of capital grants
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other receivables and assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Liability to City of Oakland
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Environmental and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities $

Non-cash capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets in accounts payable and

accrued liabilities $

Net change in retention on capital construction contracts
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Disposal of capitalized insurance costs

Gain on sale of capital assets

Grants - capital contributions

2014 2013
55,236 $ 65,661
99,259 98,234

7,349 2,119
1,047 688
137 69
(8,498) 1,011
(2,414) 276
(891) (1,831)
(5,174) (10,171)
10,940 (837)
(3,966) (582)
153,025 $ 154,637
19,642 $ 14,682
2,408 1,744
3,791 1,182
3,766 -
- 13,234
11,650 8,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Organization

The Port of Oakland, California (Port) was established in 1927 by the City of Oakland (City) and
is included as a component unit in the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
financial statements include the operations of the Oakland International Airport (Airport or
OAK), the maritime facilities and commercial real estate holdings.

The Port is governed by a seven-member Board of Port Commissioners (Board) whose members
are appointed by the City Council, upon nomination by the Mayor. The Board appoints an
Executive Director to administer operations. The Port prepares and controls its own budget,
administers and controls its fiscal activities, and is responsible for all Port construction and
operations. The Port is required by the City Charter to deposit its revenues in the City Treasury.
The City Treasurer is responsible for investing and managing such funds.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The Port’s financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to
governmental units. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized
when they are incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflow/inflow of resources, and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and
assumptions are used to record environmental remediation liabilities, accounts receivable and
grant receivable accruals, allowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation expense, other post-
employment benefits costs and various expense allocations. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Net Position

Net position represents the residual interest in the Port's assets and deferred outflows of resources
after liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted. Net position consists of three
sections: net investment in capital assets, restricted for construction, and unrestricted. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related
debt are included in this component of net position. The restricted component of net position
consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those assets. As of June 30, 2014 and
2013, the statement of net position reported $10,072,000 and $14,178,000, respectively, as
restricted for construction.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Cash Equivalents

The Port considers highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. The Port's cash and investments in the City Treasury are, in
substance, demand deposits and are considered cash equivalents.

Investments

The Port reports its investments at fair value in the accompanying financial statements and the
corresponding change in fair value of investments is reported in the year in which the change
occurs. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded for invoices issued to customers and granting agencies in
accordance with contractual arrangements. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on a
tiered percentage of significantly aged receivables. Accounts receivable are written-off against
the allowance when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of receivables previously written-off are
recorded when received.

Restricted Assets

Assets whose use is restricted to specific purposes by bond indenture or regulation are segregated
on the statements of net position.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost and it is the policy of the Port to capitalize all expenses related to
capital assets greater than $5,000. Interest costs applicable to qualifying assets are capitalized as
part of the cost of the assets. Interest earned on temporary investment of the proceeds from
qualifying tax-exempt debt is offset against interest costs capitalized. Depreciation expense is
calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Buildings and improvements 5 to 50 years
Container cranes 25 years
Infrastructure 10 to 50 years
Other equipment 5 to 10 years
Intangible assets 20 years

Tenant improvements paid for by the tenants and owned by the Port are recorded as capital assets
with an offsetting credit to unearned revenue. The asset is amortized over the shorter of the life
of the lease or the life of the asset and the unearned revenue is amortized over the same terms.

Intangible assets which are identifiable are recorded as capital assets. The Port has identified
noise easements, air rights and computer software development costs as intangible assets.
Intangible assets not having indefinite useful lives are amortized over the estimated useful life of
the asset.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Other Receivables

Other receivables include future lease receipts from a fifty-year finance lease agreement
associated with the sale and lease of the Marina as discussed in Note 7, and a note receivable
associated with the sale and lease of the Oak-to-Ninth property as discussed in Note 4.

Loss on Refunding

The loss on refunding at the time of a refunding is reported as deferred outflow of resources and
is amortized as interest expense over the shorter of the remaining life of the refunded bonds or
life of the new bonds.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned interest revenue and prepaid rent related to tenant leases are deferred and amortized
principally on the straight-line method over the life of the remaining lease term.

Compensated Absences

The Port accrues employee benefits, including accumulated vacation and sick leave, as liabilities
in the period the benefits are earned.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that result from the
ongoing principal operations of the Port. Operating revenues consist primarily of charges for
services. Non-operating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are
related to financing and investing activities. When an expense is incurred for purposes for which
there are both restricted and unrestricted assets available, it is the Port’s policy to first utilize
available restricted assets and then to utilize unrestricted assets.

Allocation of Expenses to the Port Businesses

The Port records to each of its revenue divisions (Aviation, Maritime, and Commercial Real
Estate) expenses directly related to those operations. In addition, the Port annually allocates
indirect expenses to these divisions based on an expense allocation methodology. Allocated
expenses include general operating expenses, maintenance, advertising and promotion, and
administrative expenses.

Grants from Government Agencies

Grants are, for the most part, restricted for the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Such
grants are recorded as revenue when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Passenger Facility Charges

The Port, as authorized by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) pursuant to the Aviation
Safety and Capacity Expansion Act of 1990 (the Act), as amended, currently imposes a Passenger
Facility Charge (PFC) of $4.50 for each enplaning passenger at the Airport. Under the Act, air
carriers are responsible for the collection of PFC charges and are required to remit PFC revenues
to the Port in the following month after they are recorded by the air carrier. The Port has three
approved and active applications with the FAA to collect and use PFC funds for specific
purposes. The current authority to impose PFCs is estimated to end March 1, 2032.

PFC revenues, including any interest earned thereon, are restricted solely to finance allowable
costs of new airport planning and development projects as defined and authorized by the FAA.
PFC revenues may be used to pay debt service and related expenditures associated with FAA
approved projects and the Port has received FAA approval to pay certain debt service if debt
proceeds are used for qualifying projects. PFC revenues are recorded as non-operating revenue
and any unspent PFC revenues are recorded as restricted cash.

Customer Facility Charges

Under Section 1936 of the California Civil Code, and pursuant to a Port ordinance effective
January 2009, the rental car companies operating at the Airport are required to collect from the
rental customers and remit to the Port a $10-per-transaction Customer Facility Charge (CFC).
The revenues from CFCs collected by the Port are funding the common use shuttle bus operations
between the terminal and rental car facility and are eligible to fund common use capital
improvements. CFC revenues are recorded as non-operating revenue and any unspent CFC
revenues are recorded as restricted cash.

New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
The significant changes in this statement address (1) the measurement of pension obligations that
derive liabilities (or assets); and (2) the calculations behind pension expense. GASB 68 also
covers:

o Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources;

o Methods and assumptions of pension calculations, including how to calculate the

discount rate to be used and how to attribute the pension liability to various periods;
¢ Note disclosure and required supplementary information; and
e Defined contribution pension plan reporting.

Application of this statement is effective for the Port’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted (continued)

In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pensions Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. This Statement
addresses an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of the GASB Statement No.
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated
with contributions, if any, made by the state or local government employer or nonemployer
contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the
government’s beginning net pension liability.

Application of this statement is effective for the Port’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.
Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investments, and Deposits

The Port's cash, cash equivalents, investments and deposits in escrow consisted of the following
at June 30 (in thousands):

2014 2013
U.S. Treasury Notes $ - 8 57,896
Government Securities Money Market Mutual Funds 58,098 120
City Investment Pool 209,200 190,396
Deposits in Escrow 5,549 2,269
Bank Deposits and Cash on Hand 625 626
$ 273,472 $ 251,307

Deposits in Escrow

Deposits in escrow consist of amounts received from construction contractors that are deposited
into an escrow account in-lieu of retention withheld from construction progress billings. Interest
on these deposits accrues to the contractor.

Investments

Under the City Charter, all cash receipts from the operations of the Port are deposited in the City
Investment Pool. These funds are invested by the City, pursuant to an Investment Policy, which
it administers and reviews annually. For this reason, the Port does not maintain a policy of its
own, and relies on the City Investment Policy to mitigate the risks described below.

Senior Lien Bonds reserves are on deposit with the Senior Lien Bonds trustee. The investment of
funds held by the Senior Lien Bonds trustee is governed by the Senior Trust Indenture and is
currently invested in either 1) U.S. Treasury Notes or 2) Government Securities Money Market
Mutual Funds. There were no investments pertaining to the Intermediate Lien Debt.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Investments (continued)

At June 30, 2014, the Port had the following investments (in thousands):

Maturity
Credit
Rating per Less than
Fair Value Moody's 1 Year 1-5 Years
Government Securities Money
Market Mutual Funds $ 58,098 Aaa $ 58,098 -
City Investment Pool 209,200 Not rated 209,200 -
Total Investments $ 267,298 $ 267,298 $ -
At June 30, 2013, the Port had the following investments (in thousands):
Maturity
Credit
Rating per Less than
Fair Value Moody's 1 Year 1-5 Years
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 57,896 Aaa $ - $ 57,896
Government Securities Money
Market Mutual Funds 120 Aaa 120 -
City Investment Pool 190,396 Not rated 190,396 -
Total Investments $ 248,412 $ 190,516 $ 57,896

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The following are the types of investments generally allowed under the Senior Trust Indenture
and the Intermediate Trust Indenture dated as of October 1, 2007 (Intermediate Trust Indenture,
together with the Senior Trust Indenture, are referred to as the Trust Indentures): U.S.
Government Securities, U.S. Agency Obligations, obligations of any State in the U.S., prime
commercial paper, FDIC insured deposits, certificates of deposit/banker’s acceptances, money
market mutual funds, long or medium-term corporate debt, repurchase agreements, state-
sponsored investment pools, investment contracts, and forward delivery agreements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Interest Rate Risk

This risk represents the possibility that an interest rate change could adversely affect an
investment’s fair value.

In order to manage interest rate risk:

Proceeds from bonds are invested in permitted investments, as stated in the Trust
Indentures, with short term maturities.

The deposits with the City Treasury pursuant to the City’s Investment Policy and Section
53601 of the State of California Government Code, limits certain investments to short-
term maturities of 360 days and 270 days, respectively. Also, Section 53601 limits the
maximum maturity of any investment to be no longer than 5 years unless authority for
such investment is expressly granted in advance by the City Council or authorized by
bond covenants.

Credit Risk

This risk represents the possibility that the issuer/counterparty to an investment will be unable to
fulfill its obligation.

In order to manage credit risk:

Provisions of the Trust Indentures prescribe restrictions on the types of permitted
investments of the monies held by the trustee in the funds and accounts created under the
Trust Indentures, including agreements or financial institutions that must meet certain
ratings, such as certain investments that must be rated in either of the two highest ratings
by S&P and Moody’s.

The deposits with the City Treasury are invested in short-term debt that is rated at least
A-1 by S&P, P-1 by Moody’s or F-1 by Fitch Ratings. Long-term debt shall be rated at
least A- by S&P, A3 by Moody’s, and A- by Fitch Ratings.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Trust Indentures place no limit on the amount the Port may invest in any one issuer.

Port revenues are deposited in the City Treasury. These and all City funds are pooled and
invested in the City Investment Pool. The City has adopted an investment policy that provides
for the following:

The maximum maturity for any one investment may not exceed 5 years.

No more than 5 percent of the total assets of the investments held by the City may be
invested in the securities of any one issuer except the obligations of the United States
government or government-sponsored enterprises.

Permitted investments include U.S. treasury securities, federal agency and
instrumentalities, banker’s acceptances, commercial paper, asset-backed commercial
paper, local government investment pools, medium-term notes, negotiable certificates of
deposit, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, secured obligations and
agreements, certificates of deposit, money market mutual funds, state investment pool
(Local Agency Investment Fund), local City/agency bonds and State of California
obligations, and other local agency bonds.

All investments are to be secured through third party custody and safekeeping
procedures. All securities purchased from dealers and brokers are held in safekeeping by
the City’s custodial bank, which establishes ownership by the City.

Additional information regarding deposit custodial credit, interest and credit risks, and
securities lending transactions of the City Investment Pool is presented in the notes of the
City’s basic financial statements. Requests for financial information should be addressed
to the Finance and Management Agency, Accounting Division, City of Oakland, 150
Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 6353, Oakland, California 94612-2093.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risks is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution
or counterparty to a transaction, the Port will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in possession of another party.

To protect against custodial credit risk:

All securities owned by the Port under the terms of the Trust Indentures are held in the
name of the Port for safekeeping by a third party bank trust department, acting as an
agent for the Port. The Port had investments held by a third party bank trust department
in the amount of $58,098,000 and $58,016,000 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
All securities owned by the Port and invested by the City are held in the name of the City
for safekeeping by a third party bank trust department, acting as an agent for the City
under the terms of the Custody Agreements. The Port had $209,200,000 and
$190,396,000 invested in the City Investment Pool at June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Custodial Credit Risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the Port’s deposits in escrow was $5,549,000 at June 30, 2014 and
$2,269,000 at June 30, 2013. Of this amount, bank balances and escrow deposits of $250,000 on
June 30, 2014 and on June 30, 2013, are insured or collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution’s trust department in the Port’s name and the remaining balance of
$5,218,000 as of June 30, 2014 and $1,839,000 as of June 30, 2013, was exposed to custodial
credit risk by not being insured or collateralized.

4. Changes in Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2014, is as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Transfer of Ending
Balance Adjustments and Completed Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Retirements Construction June 30, 2014
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 523,235 $ - $ (857) $ 905 $ 523,283
Intangibles (noise easements and air rights) 23,493 - - 2,359 25,852
Construction in progress 197,125 104,856 (6,209) (95,063) 200,709
Total capital assets not being depreciated 743,853 104,856 (7,066) (91,799) 749,844
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 848,432 - (558) 3,776 851,650
Container cranes 153,775 - (358) - 153,417
Infrastructure 1,650,965 - (57) 79,898 1,730,806
Software 13,391 - - - 13,391
Other equipment 78,829 342 (1,257) 8,125 86,039
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,745,392 342 (2,230) 91,799 2,835,303
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements (496,578) (26,887) 394 - (523,071)
Container cranes (89,071) (4,823) - - (93,894)
Infrastructure (649,098) (61,253) - - (710,351)
Software (2,763) (1,339) - - (4,102)
Other equipment (52,650) (4,957) 652 - (56,955)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,290,160) (99,259) 1,046 - (1,388,373)
Total being depreciated, net 1,455,232 (98,917) (1,184) 91,799 1,446,930
Total capital assets, net $ 2,199,085 $ 5,939 $ (8,250) $ - $ 2,196,774
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Changes in Capital Assets (continued)

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013, is as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Transfer of Ending
Balance Adjustments and Completed Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Retirements Construction June 30, 2013
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 520,805 $ - $ (762) $ 3192 % 523,235
Intangibles (noise easements and air rights) 23,493 - - - 23,493
Construction in progress 175,086 116,424 (3,331) (91,054) 197,125
Total capital assets not being depreciated 719,384 116,424 (4,093) (87,862) 743,853
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 851,721 56 (7,008) 3,663 848,432
Container cranes 153,775 - - - 153,775
Infrastructure 1,574,781 - (1,130) 77,314 1,650,965
Software 11,052 - - 2,339 13,391
Other equipment 75,973 163 (1,853) 4,546 78,829
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,667,302 219 (9,991) 87,862 2,745,392
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements (472,661) (30,088) 6,171 - (496,578)
Container cranes (83,817) (5,254) - - (89,071)
Infrastructure (592,858) (57,298) 1,058 - (649,098)
Software (1,658) (1,105) - - (2,763)
Other equipment (49,949) (4,489) 1,788 - (52,650)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,200,943) (98,234) 9,017 - (1,290,160)
Total being depreciated, net 1,466,359 (98,015) (974) 87,862 1,455,232
Total capital assets, net $ 2,185,743 $ 18,409 $ (5,067) $ - $ 2,199,085

On June 10, 2013, the Port completed the combined sale and lease of approximately 64-acres of land
known as Oak-to-Ninth. Buildings, improvements, infrastructure and certain land was transferred to a
developer in exchange for approximately $18,000,000, of which $4,500,000 was paid in cash and
$13,500,000 financed with a promissory note payable in full to the Port on or before October 1, 2015.
The net book value of the assets transferred was approximately $4,977,000.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Debt Service

The Port’s long-term debt consists primarily of tax-exempt bonds. The majority of the Port’s
outstanding bonds are revenue bonds, which are secured by Pledged Revenues of the Port.
Pledged Revenues are substantially all revenues and other cash receipts of the Port, including,
without limitation, amounts held in the Port Revenue Fund with the City, but excluding amounts
received from certain taxes, certain insurance proceeds, special facilities revenues, and certain
other gifts, fees, and grants that are restricted by their terms to purposes inconsistent with the
payment of debt service.

Pledged Revenues do not include cash received from PFCs or CFCs unless projects included in a
financing are determined to be PFC or CFC eligible and bond proceeds are expended on such
eligible projects and the Port elects to pledge PFCs or CFCs as supplemental security to such
applicable bonds. Currently, the Port has no bonds for which PFCs or CFCs are pledged.

The Port did not capitalize any interest cost in fiscal year 2014 nor in 2013.

On October 10, 2012, the Port issued $380,315,000 of 2012 Series P (AMT) together with certain
additional funds provided by the Port to refund and retire $357,025,000 of 2002 Series L and
$79,135,000 of 2002 Series N. In addition, the Port issued $3,575,000 of 2012 Series Q (non-
AMT) together with certain additional funds provided by the Port to refund and retire
$27,660,000 of 2002 Series M. The final maturity date for the 2012 Series P is May 1, 2033 and
for 2012 Series Q was May 1, 2014. The gross debt service savings through fiscal year 2033 is
$63,573,000 with a present value savings of $60,113,000. In addition, the Port recorded a
deferred loss on refunding of $1,809,000.

The Port’s required debt service payments on its Senior Lien Bonds and Intermediate Lien Bonds
are due each May 1 and November 1 through May 1, 2033. The California Department of
Boating and Waterways loan is due each August 1 through August 1, 2029. Commercial Paper
has been classified as long-term debt because the Port has the intent and ability to continue to
refinance this debt. The Port’s required debt service payment for the outstanding long-term debt
for years ending June 30 are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year
Ending Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 63,356 $ 60,062 $ 123,418
2016 71,321 56,773 128,094
2017 74,317 52,038 126,355
2018 60,551 47,841 108,392
2019 57,400 45,103 102,503
2020 - 2024 300,183 185,465 485,648
2025 - 2029 364,502 102,760 467,262
2030 - 2033 209,798 21,350 231,148
Total $ 1,201,428 $ 571,392 $ 1,772,820

Although the Port intends to refinance the Commercial Paper debt in the future, for purposes of
this schedule, Commercial Paper debt is amortized over the fiscal years ending 2015-2018
pursuant to the “Term Loan” provisions of the Commercial Paper Reimbursement Agreements.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Types of Debt and Priority of Payment
Senior Lien Bonds

On October 10, 2012, the 2002 Series L, 2002 Series M, and 2002 Series N were refunded with
2012 Series P and 2012 Series Q. 2011 Series O, 2012 Series P, and 2012 Series Q (collectively,
the Senior Lien Bonds) are issued under the Senior Trust Indenture and are paid from Pledged
Revenues first.

As long as any Senior Lien Bonds remain outstanding, the Port has covenanted to collect rates,
tolls, fees, rentals and charges so that Pledged Revenues in each fiscal year will be sufficient to
pay all of the following amounts: (i) the sum of principal and interest on the outstanding Senior
Lien Bonds; (ii) all other payments required for compliance with terms of the Senior Trust
Indenture including, but not limited to, required deposits to any Reserve Fund; (iii) all other
payments necessary to meet ongoing legal obligations to be paid from Pledged Revenues; and (iv)
operation and maintenance expenses of the Port. In addition, payment of principal and interest on
the Senior Lien Bonds when due is secured by a reserve fund held by the trustee and invested in
U.S. Treasury Notes.

The Port has also covenanted in the Senior Trust Indenture that Net Pledged Revenue (Revenues
less the Operation and Maintenance Expenses) will be equal to at least 125% of actual debt
service for the Senior Lien Bonds (Senior Lien Debt Coverage Ratio).

California Department of Boating and Waterways (DBW) Loan

The DBW Loan is subordinate to the Senior Lien Bonds but superior to the Intermediate Lien
Bonds and the Port’s Commercial Paper Notes with respect to the Pledged Revenues. The Port
turned over the operation of its marina, financed, in part, with DBW Loans, to a private company
through a fifty-year capital lease in May 2004. The only DBW Loan outstanding as of June 30,
2014, was Series 1993 with a balance of $5,140,000.

Intermediate Lien Bonds

The 2007 Series A, Series B and Series C Bonds (collectively, the Intermediate Lien Bonds)
issued under the Intermediate Trust Indenture are next in payment priority. The Intermediate
Lien Bonds are paid from the Intermediate Lien Pledged Revenues. The Intermediate Lien
Pledged Revenues are the Pledged Revenues after payment first, of all amounts payable for any
Senior Lien Bonds and second, any debt service requirements payable on the DBW Loan.
Payment of principal and interest on the Intermediate Lien Bonds when due is secured by a debt
service reserve surety policy, as well as being insured by municipal bond insurance policies.

The Port covenanted in the Intermediate Trust Indenture that Net Pledged Revenues will be equal
to at least 110% of the actual debt service becoming due and payable on the combined
Intermediate Lien Bonds, Senior Lien Bonds, and DBW Loan (Intermediate Lien Debt Coverage
Ratio).
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Commercial Paper Notes

Commercial Paper Notes (CP Notes) have the lowest payment priority. The Board authorized a
$150,000,000 Commercial Paper program in 1998 and a further $150,000,000 was authorized in
1999. The maximum maturity of the CP Notes is 270 days and the maximum interest rate is 12%.
The Port has classified the CP Notes as long term debt as the Port intends and has the ability to
reissue CP Notes until the expiration of the two irrevocable Letters of Credit (LOC), discussed
below. Interest income paid to the holders of the CP Notes may fall under one of three tax
treatments: tax-exempt Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT), tax-exempt non-AMT and taxable.

As of June 30, 2013, the CP Notes, backed by one of two separate irrevocable LOC which were
originally issued on August 2, 2010, were as follows:

o Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (Wells) with a maximum stated amount of
$163,315,000 (principal of $150,000,000 and interest of $13,315,000) and a termination
date of August 2, 2013. The outstanding balance on the CP Notes issued under this LOC
was $63,398,000 on June 30, 2013.

e JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (JPMorgan) with a maximum stated amount
of $54,438,000 (principal of $50,000,000 and interest of $4,438,000) and an original
termination date of August 2, 2012, that was extended to August 1, 2014. The
outstanding balance on the CP Notes issued under this LOC was $15,000,000 on June 30,
2013.

Commercial Paper Notes (continued)

On July 1, 2013, the Port renewed its LOC’s with both Wells and JPMorgan. Each LOC now has
a maximum stated amount of $108,876,713 (principal of $100,000,000 and interest of
$8,876,713) and a termination date of June 30, 2016.

As of June 30, 2014, the outstanding balance on the CP notes issued under the Wells LOC was
$62,398,000, while the CP notes issued under JP Morgan LOC was $15,000,000.

The Port covenants in the Letter of Credit and Reimbursement Agreements with Wells and
JPMorgan that the Intermediate Lien Debt Coverage Ratio will equal to at least 110%.

39



Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Priority of Payment

The following are the priority of payment tables (in thousands):

FY 2014
Total Debt Debt FY 2014
Maturity Service to Principal Net Pledged
Date Maturity and Interest Revenues**
Total Net Pledged Revenues $ 160,242
Senior Lien Bonds:
2011 Revenue Bonds Series O 5/1/2031  $ 488,824 $ 23,084
2012 Revenue Bonds Series P 5/1/2033 621,260 21,338
2012 Revenue Bonds Series Q 5/1/2014 - 3,647
Subtotal Senior Lien Bonds 1,110,084 48,069 (48,069)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after Sr. Lien 112,173
Dept. of Boating and Waterways Loan 8/1/2029 7,321 457 (457)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after DBW 111,716
Intermediate Lien Bonds:
2007 Series A 11/1/2029 257,556 25,300
2007 Series B 11/1/2029 216,538 20,436
2007 Series C 11/1/2019 92,658 3,928
Subtotal Intermediate Lien Bonds 566,752 49,664 (49,664)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after Int. Lien 62,052
Commercial Paper Notes* 88,663 1,086 (1,086)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after CP Notes $ 60,966
Total $ 1,772,820 $ 99,276

* The Total Debt Service to Maturity for Commercial Paper includes principal and interest on outstanding Commercial

Paper debt pursuant to the “Term Loan” provision of the Commercial Paper Reimbursement Agreements.

** Net Pledged Revenues is Revenues less Operation and Maintenance Expenses (not including operating expenses
reimbursed with grants and CFC funds totaling, $4,428,000) plus Interest Earned (not including interest earned on PFC
and CFC funds, $39,000 and $15,000 respectively)
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Priority of Payment (continued)

FY 2013
Total Debt Debt FY 2013
Maturity Service to Principal Net Pledged
Date Maturity and Interest Revenues**
Total Net Pledged Revenues $ 170,128
Senior Lien Bonds:
2002 Revenue Bonds Series L 11/1/2032 $ - $ 9,150
2002 Revenue Bonds Series M 11/1/2020 - 15,848
2002 Revenue Bonds Series N 11/1/2022 - 9,890
2011 Revenue Bonds Series O 5/1/2031 511,908 23,081
2012 Revenue Bonds Series P 5/1/2033 643,117 10,254
2012 Revenue Bonds Series Q 5/1/2014 3,646 40
Subtotal Senior Lien Bonds 1,158,671 68,263 (68,263)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after Sr. Lien 101,865
Dept. of Boating and Waterways Loan 8/1/2029 7,779 457 (457)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after DBW 101,408
Intermediate Lien Bonds:
2007 Series A 11/1/2029 282,856 25,300
2007 Series B 11/1/2029 236,974 9,320
2007 Series C 11/1/2019 96,587 3,928
Subtotal Intermediate Lien Bonds 616,417 38,548 (38,548)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after Int. Lien 62,860
Commercial Paper Notes* 89,811 156 (156)
Net Pledged Revenues Remaining after CP Notes $ 62,704
Total $ 1,872,678 $ 107,424

The Total Debt Service to Maturity for Commercial Paper includes both principal and interest on outstanding Commercial
Paper debt pursuant to the “Term Loan” provision of the Commercial Paper Reimbursement Agreements.

Net Pledged Revenues is Revenues less Operation and Maintenance Expenses (not including operating expenses
reimbursed with grants and CFC funds, $5,197,000) plus Interest Earned (not including interest earned on PFC and CFC
funds, $51,000 and $8,000 respectively).
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Bond Premium (Discount)

The Port amortizes the original issue discount or premium over the life of each bond issue. The

unamortized amount for each Port issue is as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013
(Discount) (Discount)

Bond Issue Premium Premium
Senior Lien Bonds:
2011 Series O $ 5,590 $ 7,172
2012 Series P 41,218 42,754
2012 Series Q - 49

Subtotal Senior Lien Bonds 46,808 49,975
Intermediate Lien Bonds:
2007 Series A 3,369 3,866
2007 Series B 4,363 5,290
2007 Series C 2,298 2,960

Subtotal Intermediate Lien Bonds 10,030 12,116
Commercial Paper (1) -
Total 3 56,837 3 62,091

Environmental and Other Liabilities

Changes in environmental and other liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as

follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 One Year
General liability $ 290 $ - $ (290) $ - $ -
Accrued vacation, sick leave
and compensatory time 7,481 4,814 (5,223) 7,072 5,223
Pollution liability 17,674 - (4,201) 13,473 2,991
Workers' compensation 9,630 3,025 (1,473) 11,182 1,500
Other long-term liabilities 1,927 474 (1,094) 1,307 -
Total $ 37,002 $ 8,313 $ (12,281) $ 33,034 $ 9,714
Beginning Ending Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 One Year
General liability $ 5,663 $ - $ (5,373) $ 290 $ 290
Accrued vacation, sick leave
and compensatory time 6,023 6,482 (5,024) 7,481 5,024
Pollution liability 21,227 4,432 (7,985) 17,674 4,018
Workers' compensation 8,190 2,632 (1,192) 9,630 1,500
Other long-term liabilities 1,995 472 (540) 1,927 -
Total $ 43,098 $ 14,018 $ (20,114) $ 37,002 $ 10,832
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Leases

A major portion of the Port’s capital assets are leased to others. Leased assets include maritime
facilities, aviation facilities, office and commercial space, and land. The majority of the Port’s
leases are classified as operating leases.

Certain maritime facilities are leased under agreements that provide the tenants with preferential,
but nonexclusive, use of the facilities. These leases provide for rentals based on gross revenues
of the leased premises, or in the case of marine terminal facilities, on annual usage of the
facilities. The leases generally provide for minimum rentals, and certain preferential assignments
provide for both minimum and maximum rentals.

A summary of revenues from long-term leases for years ended June 30 is as follows (in
thousands):

2014 2013

Minimum non-cancelable rentals, including preferential assignments $ 170,700 $ 178,085
Contingent rentals in excess of minimums 18,568 16,272
$ 189,268 $ 194,357

The Port and Ports America Outer Harbor Terminal, LLC, a private company, entered into a long-
term concession and lease agreement on January 1, 2010, for the operation of Berths 20-24 for 50
years. A $60 million upfront fee was paid to the Port in fiscal year 2010 which is being
amortized over the life of the lease. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the unamortized net upfront fee
was approximately $48.9 million and $49.9 million, respectively. At June 30, 2014, the amounts
classified as short-term and long-term unearned revenue were $1,074,000 and $47,782,000
respectively. At June 30, 2013, the amounts classified as short-term and long-term unearned
revenue were $1,073,000 and $48,857,000 respectively.

Minimum future rental revenues for years ending June 30 under non-cancelable operating leases
having an initial term in excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

2015 $ 169,189
2016 169,099
2017 153,764
2018 129,970
2019 105,400
2020-2024 453,275
2025-2029 292,172
2030-2034 297,050
2035-2039 275,092
2040-2044 260,976
2045-2049 284,627
Thereafter 709,044

$ 3,299,658
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Leases (continued)

The Port turned over the operation of its marina to a private company through a long-term
financing lease and operating agreement on May 1, 2004. Minimum future lease payments to be
received, which is a component of unearned revenue, for years ending June 30 are as follows (in
thousands):

2015 $ 401
2016 413
2017 426
2018 438
2019 452
2020-2024 2,470
2025-2029 2,863
2030-2034 3,319
2035-2039 3,848
2040-2044 4,460
2045-2049 5171
Thereafter 5,777
$___ 30,038

The capital assets leased to others at June 30 consist of the following (in thousands):

2014 2013

Land $ 412,265 $ 447,870
Container cranes 153,417 153,775
Buildings and improvements 203,682 215,556
Infrastructure 1,064,953 1,045,178

1,834,317 1,862,379
Less accumulated depreciation (652,053) (631,192)
Net capital assets, on lease $ 1,182,264 $ 1,231,187
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Port of Oakland

Notes to Financial Statements

(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)

For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists primarily of an upfront fee from a terminal operating lease; a long
term financing lease for the marina operations; early redemption of special facilities bonds;
prepayment of bond debt service for airline fuel facility and prepaid tenant rent.

Changes in unearned revenue for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in

thousands):

Beginning Ending Amounts

Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2014 One Year

Ports America Outer Harbor upfront fee $ 49930 $ - $ (1,074) $ 48,856 $ 1,074

Marina capital lease unearned interest

revenue 20,552 - (503) 20,049 503
92A Special Facility bond redemptions 13,870 - (2,522) 11,348 2,522
Oakland Fuel Facilities Corporation 9,266 150 (580) 8,836 580
Unearned tenant rent 10,132 7,167 (7,654) 9,645 7,383
Other unearned revenue 1,504 - (158) 1,346 158
Total $ 105,254 $ 7317 $ __ (12,491) $ 100,080 $ 12,220
Beginning Ending Amounts

Balance Balance Due Within

July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2013 One Year

Ports America Outer Harbor upfront fee $ 51,003 $ - $ (1,073) $ 49930 $ 1,073

Marina capital lease unearned interest

revenue 21,055 - (503) 20,552 503
92A Special Facility bond redemptions 16,392 - (2,522) 13,870 2,522
Oakland Fuel Facilities Corporation 9,696 150 (580) 9,266 580
Unearned tenant rent 13,427 7,438 (10,733) 10,132 7,654
Other unearned revenue 3,852 - (2,348) 1,504 159
Total $ 115425 $ 7588 $ _ (17,759) $ 105,254 $ 12,491

Retirement Plan

Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan Description

All full-time and certain other qualifying employees of the Port are eligible to participate in the
Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (Fund) of the State of California’s Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). Port employees are included on a cost-sharing basis with City
employees in the City of Oakland miscellaneous unit of CalPERS. The Fund provides retirement,
disability, and death benefits based on the employee’s years of service, age and final

compensation.

Employees hired before January 2013 vest after five years of service and may receive retirement
benefits at age 50. Starting in January 2013, CalPERS members who fall under the definition of a
“new member” as defined by the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) will vest after
five years of service and may receive retirement benefits at age 52.
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Port of Oakland
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan Description (continued)

These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute and City
ordinance. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the
annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 Q Street,
Sacramento, California 95811 or at www.CalPERS.ca.gov. A separate report for the City’s plan
within CalPERS is not available.

CalPERS does not calculate a separate pension obligation for the Port; therefore, no separate Port
obligation can be presented herein. CalPERS’ most recent actuarial valuation for the
Miscellaneous Plan of the City of Oakland as of June 30, 2013 valued the combined Port and City
actuarial accrued liability at $2,153,339,419 and the combined Port and City unfunded actuarial
accrued liability was $656,748,512. Under the requirements of GASB 68, the Port will have to
recognize a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability and GASB 68 has
recommended the use of the Port’s projected long-term contribution effort as compared to the
total projected long-term contribution effort of the combined Port and City as a basis for
determining the Port’s share. The Port is evaluating the effects of this methodology in
anticipation of implementing GASB 68 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

The Port is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund retirement benefits for
its employees using the actuarial basis determined by CalPERS. The Port’s employer
contribution to the Fund was 27.295% (fiscal year 2014), 25.115% (July 2012 to Feb 2013),
24.248% (March 2013 to June 2013), and 23.604% (fiscal year 2012) of covered payroll. For the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012, the Port’s annual pension costs for the
employer contribution to CalPERS was $13,105,000, $11,490,000, and $11,039,000 respectively.
The Port contributed 100% of the actuarial required contribution for each of the three years. The
employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2014 was based upon an actuarial
valuation study performed by CalPERS Actuarial & Employer Services Division as of June 30,
2011.

The Port’s payroll reported to CalPERS for employees participating in the Fund was $48,524,000,
$45,796,000, and $46,768,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
The Port’s payroll for all employees was $48,727,000, $44,721,000, and $43,214,000 in fiscal
years 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively.

PERS Employee Member Contributions

For fiscal year 2013, the Port elected to pay the 8% Employer Paid Member Contributions
(EPMC) to CalPERS on behalf of most of its employees and has exercised its options to include
the 8% EPMC as compensation for the purpose of calculating the CalPERS contribution.

Effective the first day of the pay period containing July 1, 2013, the Port discontinued the
payment of the 8% EPMC. Port employees who are members of CalPERS including
unrepresented employees are required to contribute 8% of their base salary as employee paid
member contributions to CalPERS

The Port has contributed $5,500, $3,122,000, and $3,552,000 for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2014, 2013, and 2012 respectively.
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Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013

Starting in January 2013, CalPERS members who fall under the definition of a “new member” as
defined by PEPRA are subject to the provisions of PEPRA.

Highlights of PEPRA are below. For more information contact CalPERS at (888) 225-7377.

o Benefit formula for new Miscellaneous members is 2% at age 62
e Caps annual salary that can be used to calculate final pension benefit
e Imposes member contribution requirements

Change in CalPERS Assumptions

On March 14, 2012, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to lower
the CalPERS discount rate assumption, or the rate of investment return the Fund assumes, from
7.75 to 7.50 percent. The new discount rate was used to set the plan’s 2014-15 contributions
rates.

On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change
the CalPERS amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013
valuations that set the plan’s 2015-16 contribution rates, CalPERS will no longer use the actuarial
value of assets and will employ an amortization and smoothing policy that will pay for all gains
and losses over a fixed 30-year period with increases or decreases in the rate spread directly over
a 5-year period.

On February 19, 2014, the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively modest changes
to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns. The new asset
allocation is expected to have a long-term blended return that continues to support a discount rate
of 7.5 percent. The CalPERS Board of Administration also adopted several changes to the
demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual experience. The new actuarial
assumptions will be used to set the plan’s 2016-17 contribution rates.

Agreement Between the City and the Port Regarding CalPERS Payments

During the period from July 1, 1976, through January 17, 1998, the Port appointed certain
employees to positions in the classifications of Airport Servicemen and Airport Operations
Supervisors. The Port was and has always been the employer that directly appointed, retained,
employed and compensated the personnel in these positions.

As result of a decision by CalPERS’ Board of Administration on April 15, 1998, employees
appointed to positions in the classifications of Airport Servicemen and Airport Operations
Supervisors were reclassified from miscellaneous member status in CalPERS to safety member
status, effective retroactively to the later of either the date of their respective employment in such
classifications or July 1, 1976.
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10.

Agreement Between the City and the Port Regarding CalPERS Payments (continued)

The decision to reclassify employees to safety member status resulted in an additional net cost to
provide retirement benefits. CalPERS’ actuary estimated that the present value of this net cost
(including subsequent actual experience through June 30, 2000, and projected experience through
June 30, 2002) was $5,915,000.

The Port entered into an agreement with the City for the payment of this net cost by the Port
directly to CalPERS. The agreement provides for the Port to make payments over 20 years in
annual installments, adjusted for cost of living at a rate of 3.75%, until fully paid. No pre-
payment penalty applies. The Port has made the scheduled payments of $697,397 and $672,190
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The remaining unfunded liability
at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $4,631,000 and $4,922,000 respectively.

Other Postemployment Benefits
Plan Description

The Port contributes to the California Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by CalPERS.
The CERBT is an Internal Revenue Code Section 115 trust and an investment vehicle that can be
used by all California public employers to prefund future retiree health and Other
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) costs.

The Port’s Retiree Health Plan allows eligible retirees and their dependents to receive employer
paid medical insurance benefits through CalPERS, subject to certain limitations described below.
Additionally, through the Port’s Retiree Health Plan, employees hired before October 1, 2009
[before January 1, 2013 for members of the Services Employees International Union (SEIU) and
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW)] are eligible to receive dental and vision
benefits.

Prior to 2011, eligible retirees must have attained the age of fifty or over at the time of retirement,
have five or more years of CalPERS service, and must be eligible to receive PERS retirement
benefits. On July 21, 2011, the Port adopted resolutions that established a Health Benefit Vesting
Requirement for employees hired on or after September 1, 2011 (on or after April 1, 2013 for
members of SEIU and IBEW). The vesting schedule does not apply to employees that are
granted a disability retirement.
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Plan Description (continued)

Under the adopted vesting schedule, the Port shall pay a percentage of retiree medical coverage
for a retiree and his or her eligible dependents based on the provisions of Section 22893 of the
California Government Code. Under these rules, a retiree must have at least 10 years of credited
service with a CalPERS agency, at least five of which are with the City/Port. The Port will pay a
percentage of employer contributions for the Retiree based upon the following:

Years of Credited Service %
(at least 5 of which are with the City/Port) of Employer Contributions
10 50
11 55
12 60
13 65
14 70
15 75
16 80
17 85
18 90
19 95
20 100

Funding Policy

Benefit provisions are established and are amended through negotiations between the Port and the
various bargaining units during each bargaining period. The Port pays a portion of retiree benefit
expenses on a pay-as-you-go basis to third parties, outside of the CERBT fund, and funds the
remaining annual required contribution (ARC) to the CERBT fund.

As of June 30, 2014, there were approximately 535 employees who had retired from the Port and
were participating in the Port’s Retiree Health Plan. During fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the
Port contributed $5,800,000 to the CERBT and made payments of $7,028,398 on behalf of
eligible retirees to third parties outside of the CERBT fund.

As of June 30, 2013, there were approximately 526 employees who had retired from the Port and
were participating in the Port’s Retiree Health Plan. During fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the
Port contributed $4,200,000 to the CERBT and made payments of $6,840,944 on behalf of
eligible retirees to third parties outside of the CERBT fund.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Port’s annual OPEB cost is equal to (a) ARC, an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, plus (b) one year’s interest on the
beginning balance of the net OPEB obligation, and minus (c) an adjustment to the ARC. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the
normal cost of each year and any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) amortized over
a “closed” period of thirty years.
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Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (continued)

The following table shows the components of the Port’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the

amount contributed to the CERBT and changes in the Port’s net OPEB obligation as of June 30
(in thousands):

2014 2013

Annual required contribution $ 12,844 $ 10,783
Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 732 800
Adjustment to annual required contribution (787) (599)

Annual OPEB Cost 12,789 10,984
Contribution made (12,828) (11,041)

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation (39) (57)
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 10,453 10,510
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 10,414 $ 10,453

The Port’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for the current and prior two years are as follows (in thousands):

Percentage of

Fiscal Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Year End Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2012 $ 10,983 99.55% $ 10,510
6/30/2013 $ 10,984 100.51% $ 10,453
6/30/2014 $ 12,789 100.30% $ 10,414

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The table below indicates the funded status of the Port’s OPEB plan as of June 30, 2013, the most
recent actuarial valuation date (in thousands).

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 136,616
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 30,715
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 105,901
Funded Ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 22.5%
Annual Covered Payroll (active plan members) $ 47,823
UAAL as a Percentage of Annual Covered Payroll 221%
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan in effect
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations of the Port is the Projected
Unit Credit Cost Method. Under the principles of this method, the actuarial present value of the
projected benefits is the value of benefits expected to be paid for active and retired employees.
The AAL is the present value of benefits attributed to employee service rendered prior to the
valuation date. The AAL equals the present value of benefits multiplied by a fraction equal to
service date over service at expected retirement. The ARC for fiscal year 2013 was based on an
actuarial valuation of the Port’s plan as of June 30, 2011, which amortized the UAAL as a level
dollar amount over an “open” period of 30 years. The ARC for fiscal year 2014 was based on an
acturial valuation of the Port’s plan as of June 30, 2013, which amortized the Port’s UAAL over a
“closed” period of 30 years.

Actuarial assumptions used for the valuation of the Port’s plan include a discount rate, which is
based on the CERBT expected rate of return for the plan assets, and annual healthcare cost trends,
which is based on the “Getzen” model published by the Society of Actuaries. The demographic
assumptions regarding turnover and retirement are based on statistics from reports for CalPERS
under a “2.7% @ 55” benefits schedule. The June 30, 2011 valuation used a discount rate of
7.61% and annual healthcare costs were assumed to increase at rates ranging from 4.00% to
8.75%. The June 30, 2013 valuation used a discount rate of 7.00% and annual healthcare costs
were assumed to increase at rates ranging from 2.75% to 7.25%.

The schedules presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, present multiyear trend information. The Schedule of Funding Progress -
Other Postemployment Benefits presents information about whether the actuarial values of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.
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11.

Agreements with City of Oakland

The Port has entered into agreements with the City for provisions of various services such as
aircraft rescue and firefighting (ARFF), Special Services, General Services, and Lake Merritt
Trust Services. The City provides these services to the Port.

Special Services include designated police services, personnel, city clerk, legislative
programming, and treasury services. General Services include fire, rescue, police, street
maintenance, and similar services. Lake Merritt Trust Services include items such as recreation
services, grounds maintenance, security, and lighting.

Port payments to the City for these services are made upon execution of appropriate agreements
and/or periodic findings and authorizations from the Board.

Special Services and ARFF

Payments for Special Services and ARFF are treated as a cost of Port operations pursuant to City
Charter Section 717(3) Clause Third and have priority over certain other expenditures of Port
revenues. Special Services and ARFF from the City totaled $ 5,475,000 and $3,221,000 in fiscal
years 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are included in Operating Expenses. At June 30, 2014
and 2013, $2,954,000 and $3,899,000, respectively, were accrued as current liabilities for these
payments.

General Services and Lake Merritt Trust Services

Payments for General Services provided by the City are payable only to the extent the Port
determines annually that surplus monies are available under the Charter for such purposes. As of
June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Port accrued approximately $773,000 and $1,012,000, respectively,
of payments for General Services. Additionally, the Port accrued approximately $1,425,000 and
$1,133,000 to reimburse the City for Lake Merritt Trust Services in fiscal years 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Subject to availability of surplus monies, the Port expects that it will continue to
reimburse the City annually for General Services and Lake Merritt Trust Services.
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12.

Golf Course Lease

The Port has leased property to the City under a 66-year lease, which is expressed in terms of the
Amended and Restated Lease between the Port and the City for the development and operation of
a public golf course by the City. The lease commenced in 2003 when the Port delivered a
completed 164.9 acre golf course to the City to replace the City’s golf course that was destroyed
when the Port used the site as a dredge disposal site. The golf course is leased to a third party and
the minimum annual rental of $270,000 is payable in twelve installments of $22,500 per month,
which is then split 50/50 between the Port and the City.

Unearned Rent

In November 1994, the City entered into an agreement with the Port to partially fund the
development of a project related to a lease at the Port. The lease required $5,145,000 in tenant
improvements partially financed by $2,000,000 in deferred rent from the City’s former
Redevelopment Agency. The unearned rent is classified as unearned revenue. At June 30, 2014
and 2013, unearned rent was approximately $802,000 and $872,000, respectively. The amount
classified as short term unearned revenue at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $70,000.

Commitments

Capital Program

As of June 30, 2014, the Port had construction commitments for the acquisition and construction
of assets as follows (in thousands):

Aviation $ 94,251
Maritime 51,787
Other 64
Total $ 146,102

The most significant projects for which the Port has contractual commitments for construction
are: Runway Safety Area of $6,601,000, Airport Terminal Renovation projects of $84,606,000,
and Phase 1 of the new rail terminal project on Port-owned OAB property of $48,347,000.
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13.

Power Purchases

The Port purchases electrical power for resale and self-consumption and currently has three
power purchase agreements with the East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD), the Western
Area Power Administration (WAPA) and SunEdison, LLC (SunEdison) with expiration dates
greater than four years.

Counterparty Contract Contract Structure Estimated Estimated Annual
Ending Year Output Cost
EBMUD 2017 Take and Pay — (Pay 8,000 MWH  Approximately
contract price only if $584,000 with no
energy is received) Annual Escalator
WAPA 2024 Take or Pay — (Pay 17,000 MWH  Approx. $800,000
contract price without (Changes annually
regard to energy depending on
received) revenue requirement
for power generation
projects)
SunEdison 2027 Take and Pay — (Pay 1,200 MWH  Approx. $200,000
contract price only if with Annual
energy is received) Escalator

In addition to the aforementioned power purchase agreements, the Port had outstanding, as of
June 30, 2014, approximately $3.6 million of power purchases contracts with Powerex
Corporation and Shell Energy North America with expiration dates of 18 months or less.

Contingencies
Environmental

The entitlements for the Airport Development Program (ADP) subject the Port to obligations
arising from the adopted ADP Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program required under: the
California Environmental Quality Act; permits issued by numerous regulatory agencies including
the Regional Water Quality Control Board and the Bay Conservation and Development
Commission; and settlement agreements. The majority of these obligations have been met, and
monitoring and reporting are ongoing.
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Environmental (continued)
A summary of the Port’s environmental liability accounts, net of the estimated recoveries,

included as Environmental and other liability on the statements of net position at June 30, 2014
and 2013, is as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 2014 Estimated

Obligating Event Liability, net Recovery
Pollution poses an imminent danger to the public or environment $ 434 $ -
Violated a pollution prevention-related permit or license - -
Identified as responsible to clean-up pollution 9,532 988
Named in a lawsuit to compel to cleanup 10 -
Begins or legally obligates to cleanup or post-cleanup activities 3,497 61
Total by Obligating Event $ 13473  $ 1,049

June 30, 2013 Estimated

Obligating Event Liability, net Recovery
Pollution poses an imminent danger to the public or environment $ 392 % -
Violated a pollution prevention-related permit or license - -
Identified as responsible to clean-up pollution 13,508 857
Named in a lawsuit to compel to cleanup 31 -
Begins or legally obligates to cleanup or post-cleanup activities 3,743 60
Total by Obligating Event $ 17674 $ 917

The environmental liability accounts in the summary tables are listed by the initial obligating
event. Due to new information, the obligating event may change from the initial obligating event.
Examples of obligating events include: 1) the Port is named, or evidence indicates that it will be
named, by a regulator such as the Department of Toxic Substances Control or the Regional Water
Quality Control Board, as a responsible party or potentially responsible party for remediation; or
2) the Port has commenced, or legally obligates itself to commence, clean-up activities,
monitoring or operation and maintenance of the remediation effort (e.g., by undertaking a soil and
groundwater pre-development investigation).

Methods and Assumptions

The Port measured the environmental liabilities for pollution remediation sites on Port-owned
property using the Expected Cash Flow technique. The measurements are based on the current
value of the outlays expected to be incurred. The cash flow scenarios include each component
which can be reasonably estimated for outlays such as testing, monitoring, legal services and
indirect outlays for Port labor instead of ranges of all components. Reasonable estimates of
ranges of possible cash flows are limited from a single scenario to a few scenarios. Data used to
develop the cash flow scenarios is obtained from outside consultants, Port staff, and the Port’s
outside legal counsel.
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Methods and Assumptions (continued)

Changes to estimates will be made when new information becomes available. Estimates for the
pollution remediation sites will be developed when the following benchmarks or changes in
estimated outlays occur:

Receipt of an administrative order.

e Participation, as a responsible party or a potentially responsible party, in the site
assessment or investigation.

e Completion of a corrective measures feasibility study.

e [ssuance of an authorization to proceed.

e Remediation design and implementation, through and including operation and
maintenance and postremediation monitoring.

e Change in the remediation plan or operating conditions, including but not limited to type
of equipment, facilities and services that will be used and price increases.

e Changes in technology.
Changes in legal or regulatory requirements.

Recoveries

Estimated future recoveries that are listed on the prior page have been netted against the
environmental and other liability accounts. In calculating the estimated future recoveries, Port
staff and outside legal counsel reviewed and applied the requirements of GASB 49 for accounting
for recoveries. For example, if a Port tenant has a contract obligation to reimburse the Port for
certain pollution remediation costs, or if an insurance carrier has paid money on a certain claim
and the Port is pursuing additional costs from the insurance carrier associated with the claim, then
a recovery was estimated. If an insurance carrier has not yet acknowledged coverage, then a
recovery was not estimated.
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14.

Litigation

The Port at various times is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the normal course of
business, including constructing public improvements or construction related claims for
unspecified amounts. The ultimate disposition of these suits and claims is not known and the
Port’s insurance may cover a portion of any losses. Port management may make provision for
probable losses if deemed appropriate on the advice of legal counsel. To the extent that such
provision for damages is considered necessary, appropriate amounts are reflected in the
accompanying financial statements. A summary of the reported liability included within the
Environmental and other liability on the statements of net position is as follows (in thousands):

General liability at June 30, 2011 $ 3,918
Current year claims and changes in estimates 4,685
Vendor payments (2,940)
General liability at June 30, 2012 5,663
Current year claims and changes in estimates (926)
Vendor payments (4,447)
General liability at June 30, 2013 290
Current year claims and changes in estimates (290)
General liability at June 30, 2014 $ -

On July 18, 2013, the Port settled litigation with one of the Port’s long-term seaport tenants, SSA
Terminals, LLC and SSA Terminals (Oakland), LLC (collectively, SSAT). The settlement
involved four of the Port’s then seven marine terminals, and allowed SSAT to create a 350-acre
mega-terminal at the Port’s middle harbor. Under the settlement, SSAT leases two terminals
through 2022 at substantially similar rates and conditions, and assumes the lease on a third
terminal through 2016, with one option to extend to 2022. Additionally, the Port agreed to
terminate SSAT’s current lease at a fourth terminal effective September 30, 2013.

Insurance

The Port purchases insurance on certain risk exposures including but not limited to property,
automobiles liability, airport liability, umbrella liability, environmental liability, fidelity,
fiduciary liability, and public officials liability. Port deductibles for the various insured programs
range from $10,000 to $1,000,000 each claim. The Port is self-insured for other general liability
and liability/litigation-type claims, workers’ compensation of the Port’s employees and most first
party exposures. During fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the Port carried excess insurance over
$1,000,000 for the self insured general liability and workers compensation exposures. There have
been no claim payments related to these programs that exceeded insurance limits in the last three
years.
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Workers' Compensation

Changes in the reported liability, which is included as part of environmental and other, follows
(in thousands):

Workers' compensation liability at June 30, 2011 $ 6,900

Current year claims and changes in estimates 2,593
Claim payments (1,303)
Workers' compensation liability at June 30, 2012 8,190
Current year claims and changes in estimates 2,632
Claim payments (1,192)
Workers' compensation liability at June 30, 2013 9,630
Current year claims and changes in estimates 3,025
Claim payments (1,473)

Workers' compensation liability at June 30, 2014 $ 11,182

The workers’ compensation liability of $11,182,000 at June 30, 2014 is based upon an actuarial
study performed as of June 30, 2014 that assumed a probability level of 70% and a discount rate
of 0.0%. The workers’ compensation liability balance of $9,630,000 at June 30, 2013 is based
upon an actuarial study performed as of June 30, 2013 that assumed a probability level of 70%
and a discount rate of 1.15%.

Capital Improvement Projects

The Port maintains an Owner Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP) and Professional Liability
Insurance Program (PLIP) for contractors and consultants working on Port Capital Improvement
Projects (CIP).

OCIP provides general liability insurance and workers’ compensation insurance for contractors
working on CIP projects. The Port is responsible for payment of the deductible/self-insured
retention, which is currently $250,000 for each general liability and workers’ compensation
claim.

The PLIP provides professional liability insurance for consultants working on Port CIP projects.
Subject to this program, the consultants separately are responsible for paying the deductible/self-
insured retentions, which are $50,000 for consultants with annual revenues under $20,000,000
and $1,000,000 for consultants with annual revenues over $20,000,000. The Port’s
deductible/self-insured retention is $1,000,000. There is no actuarial forecast for this coverage.
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For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

1.  Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits

The schedule of funding progress presented below provides a consolidated snapshot of the Port’s
ability to meet current and future liabilities with plan assets. The funded ratio conveys a plan’s
level of assets to liabilities, an important indicator to determine the financial health of the OPEB
plan. The closer the plan is to a 100% funded status, the better position it will be in to meet all of
its future liabilities.

An actuarial valuation study performed as of June 30, 2013 valued the Actuarial Accrued Liability
at $136,616,000 an increase of $7,710,000 from the previous study performed as of June 30, 2011.

Actuarial Acturial Unfunded UAAL asa %
Acturial Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (@) (AAL) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
1/1/2011 $ 13,373 $ 131,327 $ 117,954 10.2% $ 45,248 261%
6/30/2011 19,145 128,906 109,760 14.9% 44,627 246%
6/30/2013 30,715 136,616 105,901 22.5% 47,823 221%
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PORT OF OAKLAND
(A Component Unit of the City of Oakland)

Statistical Section

This part of the comprehensive annual financial report for the Port of Oakland presents detailed
information as a context for understanding the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information.
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